X
BRARNED ENFIELD‘% Camden

LONDON BORGUGH Council

5
(]
#ISLINGTON &

Haringey

NOTICE OF MEETING

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR Contact: Robert Mack
JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW  AND

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - SPECIAL

MEETING

Monday 14 November 2010 10:00 a.m. Direct line: 020 8489 2921

The Council Chamber, Haringey Civic Centre, E-mail: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk

High Road, London N22 8LE
Councillors: Maureen Braun and Alison Cornelius (L.B.Barnet), Peter Brayshaw and
John Bryant (Vice Chair) (L.B.Camden), Alev Cazimoglu and Anne Marie Pearce

(L.B.Enfield), Gideon Bull (Chair) and Dave Winskill (L.B.Haringey), Martin Klute and
Alice Perry (L.B.Islington),

Support Officers: Melissa James, Linda Leith, Robert Mack, Pete Moore and Shama
Sutar-Smith

AGENDA

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (PAGES 1 -2)
Members of the Committee are invited to identify any personal or prejudicial interests

relevant to items on the agenda. A definition of personal and prejudicial interests is
attached.

4, BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY - ORGANISATIONAL
FEASIBILITY STUDY (PAGES 3 - 8)

To consider the feasibility exercise that is currently being undertaken on the
organisational structure of hospitals in Enfield.



5. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY - IMPLEMENTATION
(PAGES 9 - 26)

To consider the implementation of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy
and associated issues.

07 November 2011



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being
discussed at the meeting?

\ 4

Do any relate to my interests whether You can participate
already registered or not? NO »| in the meeting and

vote
v YES 7y

Is a particular matter close to me?

Does it affect:

me or my partner; NO

my relatives or their partners;

my friends or close associates;

either me, my family or close associates:

e job and business;

o employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies NO
you or they are a Director of
or them to any position;

e corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of
more than £25,000 (nominal value);

> my entries in the register of interests

VVYVYY

Personal interest

more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency?

Declare your personal interest in the matter. You can
YES| remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is
also prejudicial; or

You may have a If your interest arises solely from your membership of,
personal interest or position of control or management on any other
public body or body to which you were nominated by
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only
need declare your personal interest if and when you
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial.

|

YES Does the matter affect your financial interests or
relate to a licensing, planning or other regulatory

matter; and

Would a member of the public (knowing the

relevant facts) reasonably think that your

YES personal interest was so significant that it would

prejudice your judgement of public interest?

\ 4

A 4

You may have a
prejudicial interest |

Prejudicial interest

A 4
Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?

L YES v NO

You should declare the interest but can remain You should declare the interest and
in the meeting to speak. Once you have withdraw from the meeting by leaving
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you the room. You cannot speak or vote
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from on the matter and must not seek to
the meeting by leaving the room. improperly influence the decision.

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from
pECcaB/ak/1 | Democratic Services in advance of the meeting.




Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda ltem 4

Enfield Hospitals - Organisational Feasibility
Terms of Reference

Background

On 12 September 2011 the Secretary of State for Health, Andrew Lansley, announced that
he had accepted the Independent Reconfiguration Panel’s (IRP) assessment on the Barnet
Enfield and Haringey (BEH) clinical strategy.

Representations made to the IRP suggested that the needs of Enfield residents might be
better served by the separation of the Barnet and Chase Farm NHS Trust allowing for the
creation of a new foundation trust comprising North Middlesex and Chase Farm hospitals.

The Secretary of State has directed NHS London to work with Barnet and Chase Farm
Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust to assess the
feasibility of transferring Chase Farm to the North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust
with a view to ensuring this happens if the assessment of the merits of doing so supports
this.

NHS London is required to provide this feasibility report to the Secretary of State by 16
December 2011

Scope
The scope of the feasibility report is organisational considerations. The scope excludes
service reconfiguration.

The IRP’s report to the Secretary of State was clear that in considering organisational
change, for reasons of clinical risk management, effective engagement of all relevant parties
and financial viability, these issues should only be explored within the existing framework for
implementation of the BEH clinical strategy. The report stated that “The ongoing safety and
quality of these services must be the highest priority for all concerned”.

In considering options for organisational change, NHS London will also need to take into
account the needs of Barnet and Haringey residents.

Options to be Considered

The feasibility report will assess the status quo and the capability of the Barnet and Chase
Farm NHS Trust and the North Middlesex University Trust to attain Foundation Trust status
as the benchmark against which other options will be considered.

In addition, the report will test the feasibility of:
¢ the merger of Chase Farm hospital and North Middlesex University NHS Trust; and
e Barnet hospital.

If any of these options are determined not to be feasible, high-level testing will be
undertaken on the following possibilities:



Page 4

e acquisition of any of the three hospitals by another organisation;

e the impact of including local community services and community assets; and

e merger of Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex
University Hospital NHS Trust.

This high-level testing would include a risk assessment of the complexities of these
possibilities, including legal issues and the impact on staff.

Criteria
The following criteria will be used to assess the options:
¢ the organisational change supports the implementation of the BEH clinical strategy to
ensure that sustainable improved and safer clinical services are delivered as quickly
as possible for populations of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey;
o the organisational change ensures the financial viability of NHS trusts and their
progress towards authorisation as foundation trusts and does not destabilise other
NHS trusts’ progress towards foundation trust status; and
¢ the organisational change is deliverable within the current legal and policy framework
with no disruption to services and patients, minimum disruption to staff and to a
reasonable timetable.

Engagement

In undertaking the work to determine the feasibility of a new organisational configuration,
NHS London will work closely with North Central London Cluster, Barnet and Chase Farm
Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust. The work will be
informed by the views of current and emerging commissioners (including those representing
the population in Hertfordshire that will use the hospitals in the future), clinical and non-
clinical staff employed by the affected trusts, local LINks and elected representatives.

Contact name
John Goulston, Director of Provider Development, NHS London
John.Goulston@london.nhs.uk or 020-7932 2603




Page 5

NHS

London

BEH — Organisational Feasibility Study — DRAFT FAQs

Question
Why has the Secretary of
State asked for this report?

Suggested Response

Representations made to the Independent
Reconfiguration Panel by Enfield MPs have
suggested that changes to the existing
organisational structures of local hospital trusts
could facilitate better options for services serving
Enfield residents.

Who is conducting the
feasibility work?

It is being led by NHS London working with the two
hospital trusts and NHS north central London, as
directed by the Secretary of State for Health.

Who are being asked for their
views?

The work has a technical component (e.g. what
configuration is clinically sensible, how do the
finances of the proposed organisations stack up?)
but it also needs to be informed by the views of a
wide range of stakeholders. Between now and
December we will be looking to current and
emerging commissioners, clinical and non-clinical
staff employed by the affected trusts, local LINks
and elected representatives to make their views on
organisational structure known.

Does this mean the Clinical
Strategy has been halted or
suspended?

No. The Secretary of State has accepted the IRP’s
latest recommendations on the clinical strategy and
implementation will now go ahead. A condition of
the feasibility work is that it supports the
implementation of the BEH clinical strategy.

What will happen after the
report has been submitted to
the Secretary of State?

If the report to the Secretary of State supports the
feasibility of transferring responsibility for managing
services at Chase Farm to the North Middlesex
University Hospital NHS Trust, and the Secretary of
State supports the report’s findings, the two Trusts
will be asked to develop business cases for making
the change happen. If, on the other hand, the
change is not feasible, NHS London will continue to
support the two Trusts in progressing towards
Foundation Trust status by 2014.

What will any new
organisations be called?

It is too early to say. This will only be considered if
and when further work begins on developing
business cases for making the change happen.

What are the benefits of
having Chase Farm Hospital
run by different management?

Advocates for this idea argue that it would enable
an acute foundation trust to be formed that would
focus specifically on the needs of Enfield residents.

The work over the next few weeks aims to
demonstrate whether this is the case or not. Other
criteria will also be taken into account, including
whether organisational change supports the




Page 6

NHS

London

implementation of the BEH clinical strategy, and;
whether it is deliverable within the current legal and
policy framework with no disruption to services and
patients, minimum disruption to staff and to a
reasonable timetable.

Will the outcome of the viability | No. The local NHS is clear that it has the mandate

work (whether the new to implement the clinical strategy, which will deliver
organisation is or isn’t viable) significant improvements in healthcare across the
affect the planned service boroughs of Enfield, Barnet and Haringey.

change at Chase Farm and/or

Barnet? The scope of the feasibility work is to ascertain if

the transfer of responsibility for managing services
at Chase Farm to the North Middlesex University
Hospital NHS Trust provides viable solutions for all
three hospitals concerned.

If the new organisations are viable, any
organisational change as a result of the work under
way must support the implementation of the clinical
strategy.

If either organisation is not viable, high-level
testing will be undertaken on the following
possibilities:
e acquisition of any of the three hospitals by
another organisation;
e the impact of including local community
services and community assets; and
e merger of Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals
NHS Trust and North Middlesex University
Hospital NHS Trust.

This high-level testing would include a risk
assessment of the complexities of these
possibilities, including legal issues and the impact

on staff.
| work at Chase Farm - how Many staff at Chase Farm will see their roles
will it affect me? change as the clinical strategy is implemented. If

Chase Farm Hospital were to merge with the North
Middlesex Hospital in to a new trust, staff contracts
would be likely to transfer as well.

(If the new Trust goes ahead) | If a new Trust is created it will be because that is
Will this mean redundancies? | believed to be the best organisation for securing
the clinical and financial viability or hospital
services for Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.

It is far too early to say whether any redundancies
will arise out of the organisational change.




Page 7

NHS

London

Won't it just be a distraction to
what staff are supposed to be

There should be little if any obvious impact on
patient services as a result of the change in

doing? organisation.
Is this a takeover by North No. If It proves to be viable, what we will see is a
Middlesex Trust of Chase merger of North Middlesex Trust with part of the

Farm Hospital?

current Barnet and Chase Farm Trust, creating a
new organisation for managing the two hospitals in
Enfield.

If North Middlesex merges with
Chase Farm, will there be
enough doctors/nurses/staff
across the two hospitals?

Yes. Staff at Chase Farm hospital would continue
to provide services under the management of a
new employer.

Will the feasibility work look at
each service? Some BCF
services are run at both sites
and would be difficult to split?

The implementation of the clinical strategy will sort
out which services are provided on each site. The
feasibility work is only looking at organisational
structures and will not include proposals for further
service change.

Isn’t Barnet & Chase Farm an
integrated organisation with
staff working across both
sites? How would you
disentangle clinical and
support services?

It is true to say clinical and support services are
integrated between the two hospitals. The work is
looking at clinical interdependencies and how this
issue might be addressed.

Will the new organisation
inherit any historic debt?

Considering the financial sustainability of all
affected organisations is an integral part of the
work programme under way.




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9

uopuoT jes3ua) YHoN

SHN

YN'SYU' [OU MMM

ABajeng |ealul|o
AabulieH pue pjaiyug ‘Jauteg ayjy jo uonejuawajduwy

Apnis Ajljiqisead
abuey, jeuonesiuebip AsbulieH pue pjaug ‘jauleg




uopuo] SHN ‘uols|jnos) uyor

Alliqisea abuey) |euonesiuebiO H3G

uopuo]

SHN




Page 11

y)jesH Joj 81e1s Jo Aleyaloag o) anp JModal uopuo] SHN L L0Z Jeqwedeq 9|

}snJ] SHN [eNdSOH A)sIaAIun xasa|ppIN YUON

8y} 0]} wie asey) Buluusjsuel) Jo Alljigises) ay) SSasse 0}

S)Sni| SHN X8S8|ppI ULON pue wlie4 asey) pue jauieg yjm
}JOM 0} Uopuo SHN Pal1oalip ylesH Joj 8)e1s Jo Alejaioas |10z Jequaldes zZ}

SuolEpUSWIWO98] JY|
ay) pa)deooe ay jey) peounouue yjjesH Joj a1els Jo Alejeioss | Loz Jeqweldes Z|

s|endsoy wJe4 asey) pue xass|ppIN YloN buisuudwod
1SNJ | UOIlBPUNO4{ MBU B JO uoljeald ayj o) buimojje
1SNJ | SHN wJe4 aseyd pue jaulieg ay) Jo uonesedsas
oY) Aq panJes Jayeg aq Aew sjuapisal pjeljug Jo Spaau ay)
1ey) parsabbns yoiym 43| @Ul 0] apew suoiejuasaldoy .
pajuswa|dwi aq pjnoys Absajens |eolul|d H3g -
-Uj|esH 10} |jels
Jo Aiejaloag ay] 0} suolepuswiwiodal syl paniwagns dy| aylL Loz AInr g

puno.ibyoeg



Page 12

v a|qejewi)
a|qeuoseal e 0} pue jeis 0] uondnisip wnwiulw ‘syusijed pue S82IAISS 0)
uondnusip ou Yyiim yJomauwel) Aoijod pue |ebs| Jualind ay) UIYlIM a|qelaAljap SI —

SNje]s 1SN | uolepuno4 spiemo) ssalboid sisnay
SHN J8Y]0 8sl|Ige)sap 10U SB0p pue S)sni| uollepuno4 se uoleslioyine
spJemo] ssaiboud Jisy) pue sysni} SHN 10 AlljIgeIA [eloueul) 8y] Salnsua —
AabulieH pue pjaiyug auleg Jo uonendod ay) Joj s|gissod
se Apjoinb se palaAljep aJe SadIAIaS |eoluljD Jajes pue paAoldwi ajgeuleisns
1ey) ainsua 0] ABajeJis |eoiul)d H3g ay) Jo uonejuswsa|dwi ay) spoddns —
:obueyo |euonesiuebio pasodoid ay) JI SSosse 0}
pash aq ||IM eLIB)Id Buimo||o) ay) Juswssasse Alljiqises) Jo 8d0oS ay) Uuo peseyg
‘elIdlI)

AabuleH pue pjaljug ‘1ouJeg JO SJUapISal JO SPadu ay] JOpPISUOD YIOM By |
2d092s UIYlIMm Jou SI uoljeinbijuodal 82INIDS .

Ajuo wuoj jeuonesiuebio BullBpisuod si JJom Alljigiseas ay|

:9doog

elI3}lIo pue adoog



Page 13

jers uo joedwi pue sanssi [eba| Buipnjoul ‘sanijiqissod asay)
Jo salIxa|dwo9 8y} JO JUBWISSASSE YSI4 B apnjoul pjnom Bunse) [aAs|-ybiy siy |

X3S9|PPIN YHON UM wieH aseyd pue jauleg Jo Jabisw ay| -—
sjosse AJlunwiwod pue S82IAIas Allunwiwod [eo0] Bulpnjoul jo 1oedwi ay| —
uonesiueblio Jayjoue Aq sjendsoy aaiyl ayy Jo Aue Jo uonisinboy —

:BUIMO[|0} BY) JO} UdMEeIapUN &g
IIm Buiysay [aAdl-ybiy ‘s|qises) ag 0] Jou paulwia)ep aJe suondo asay) Jo Aue j|

1snJ) a|buls e se |eudsoy jouleg —
1SnJ) a|Buls e se Xxasa|ppI\ UUON pue wied aseyd jo Jebiew ay] —

SWJ0J JUa1Ind JI8Y) Ul SNJe)s 1SnJ | Uolepuno4 uiene o) Xass|ppIA
UMON pue wlie4 asey) pue jaulegq Jo Aljigedes ay) Buipnpoul ‘onb snmeis ay| —

:10J USYEBUSpUN 8( ||IM JUSWISSOSSE AMIqISed) N}y

paJapisuod aq o} suondQo



Page 14

soAllejuasaldal pajos|g —
SINIT [B007] —
(leoluljo-uou pue [edjul|d) yeis —
(8in1nj pue 1us.ind) SIBUOISSILIWOYD —
'}IOM BU} WJOJUI O} pasSh a( OS|e [|IM SM3IA Jap|oyayels |[euolippy

JsSni] SHN [e)dsoH Aysiaalun xass|pplN YUON —
1sni| SHN Ss|elldsoH wJie{ asey) pue jauleg —
uopuo- [esjudd YHON SHN —

‘UM Aj@so[o Bupjiom s UOPUOT SHN

ylom Ajljiqisesy ay) Jo ued Asy e si juswabebug .

juswabebug



Page 15

yn-syu-uopuojmuolsjnob-uyol

suonsanp



Page 16

uopuoT jes3ua) YHoN

SHN

)N"SYU jou MMM

uopuo] [ejuad YUON SHN
9AlINd|Xd 8y
10jAe | auljolen

ABajeulg jeoaiuln AsbulieH pue
piauug ‘yauleg ayj jo uoijejuawajduwi]




Page 17

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

S9oIAI8S |ejidsoy Jo Ajljigeulelsns pue Ajljenb ay) buinosdw| —
suolIpuod wJd) buo| yym ajdoad uoddns
pue aWwoy 0} J8SO[0 84ed JoAl|ap 0] aled Allunwwod pue Atewisd Buinosdw| —

:Aq sanjenbaul yjjesy aonpal pue Sswod)no yjjeay aaoidwi 0} pasu ap)

sieak ma)
1sed ayj ul pasealoul pey buiyiAue JI pue ‘Jueas|al [|is sem abueyo 1oy
OSED [EDJIUID 3] JeY] PSSIADE [Sued MBIADY [EJIUID ®Y) 0L0Z 19]0J00 U]

-
4
“Mﬂmm%'ﬁﬁr

sabueyd |eaiul|d ayj bunuaswajduwy



Page 18

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm
oL

aleo |eldsoy pue
Arewnd ssoluoe ABajesis ay) Jo uonejuswa|dwi 8y} U0 SNJOJ [|IM M palsanbal sy

pJemlio} usyel
aJe dnoJig) Bujiop) Lodsuel | 8y JO suolepuswwosal ay) Jey) Bunsug —

aAIsuayaldwod pue pajeulplood ale sjuswaAoldwi 821AI8s 8y} eyl bulnsug —
SolIs |eldsoy aa4yj ayj uo sbulpjing pue SaoIAIeS ul SjuswaAoldw| —
sosiwald pue sadlAles aled Alewisd ul sjuswaAoldw| —

poojsJapun ale sjuswanoidwl
90IAJ8S Jey) ainsus 0} oljgnd ay) pue juswuisAob [eoo] Yim BUuIOpN —

Spaau |e20| Uo
PasSNO0} 8Je S82IAISS 8InNsud 0} Jayjebo) Buijiom sueoiulo [ejidsoy pue sdo) —

:oJe sanuoud Aay] .

sabueyd |eosiul|d ayj bunuawajduw




Page 19

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON

SHN

)N"SYU jou MMM

uopuo] [ejuad YUON SHN
J0)oali |ealps|N alen Alewiud
l|Iossny se|bnoq .1

S992IAI9S aJed Ajlunwwod
pue Alewinad Buinoaduw]




Page 20

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON

SHN

NN SYU'PU MMM
cl

SjuswaAosdwi
992IAI8S ay) JJoddns 0] 9oe|d ul aJe S92IAI8S AjJlunwiwod pue
Arewiid 1ey) ainsus 03 siauped ||e yum Buiylom O] pajiluwoD ale S\

ABajens |eoiuln AsbuleH pue pjaiyjug Qauleg ayl
suidiepun sa21AI8S aled Ajlunwwod pue Alewid Jo JuswdojaAsap ay]

S9JIAIDS
Alunwwods © Atewiad Buinoaduw




Page 21

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

AlJapj|a |iel} 8y) 10J S82IAISS 8)elbajul 0] [IoUNO)) Jauleg YlM BuiJop) —
S82IAI8S geyal 9)o1s [eoo| Buidojereq —
:S92IAJIBS uoljelljigeyad 0] sjuswanosdwi bulobuo aie atoy|

yoom e shep / ‘g-g woul
uado poomayolD ul 0L 0Z dunr ul pauado aijuad y)jeay pa| J5) MBN e

dO J1I8y) wolj aAIeoal Aay) a1ed ay) YlIMm paljsijes ale Sjusapisal JO %G

81092s (40D) YJlomawel{ swonQ
Ajjenp J1ay) Joj sbeisane pue|bug ay) aroge 8409s sadljoeld JO %89 .

(% 06<) sinoy Buiuado papus)xa Jajjo saoloeld 49 jo Aluolew ay|

(swayos | 4|7 mau) anua)
oAl 8le b e ‘sieaA juadal ul aled Alewiid ul JUsWISBAUI [ellUBISONS .

jouleyq :aJ4ed buinoaduw




Page 22

UOpUOT |es3Ud) YMON MN*SYuU" DU MMM
vi
11.0Z J8go)joQ ul pauado aiembp3

1B 8Jjuad Asupiy mau ‘68 ‘S82IAI8S |BOO| Ul SjluswaAoJdwi SNONUUOY)

saloew.leyd pue sdo) 0} yoeq ajdoad j08lipal
0} gV lauleg e pauado aJjuad uonebiAeu asinu B | | 0Z JOQUBAON U|

|E1S[9XS JEINOSNIN — ddOd -

Alabuns |eJo Jouly — ABojowjeyiydo - Abojojewiag —
doys-dojs-auo sajageiq — 1NT — solsoubelq —
Abojoun — ABojoipien — Abojooseuls —

:apn[oul AJlunWWo9 8y} UlyliM papinoid MOU SBJIAIBS

(1eaA e saouepuale 000‘00| JeA0 AjBAI1103||09)
Aa|youi{ pue aiembp3 je sauad ui-yjjem buiuonouny Ajjnj om| .

210z 91e| Aq padojeaspal Aj|n) aq ||Im |elIdSOH |ellowa|N AB|youl
|endsoH Allunwwo) aiembp3 1e sjuswdojanap juesyiublg .

jouleyq :aJ4ed buinoaduw




Page 23

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

Sl

SHN

Aiebing
usalbiong ay) ojul sadnoeld 49 OAl) JO UOIBPIIOSUOD JuUsdal ay)
Buipnjoul ‘saonoeud papuey a|buls Jo Jaqunu ybiy ay) JO uonepijosuo)
S1S8] 0Yog pue YN ‘Sueds exa(] Joj Jajal 0} SS90k Jg)eals) —
‘saoljoeld om Ul spunosel)n jeuonippy —
:Buipnjoul ‘sa2IAIBS JO Ul paJaAljap S1S8] dlisoubelp aiow ale alay |
aanoeld 4o Jiay) 1e pajead) pue usas ag ued sajagelp Yyim
sjuaned Jo Ajluolew ay) 1Byl suesw 82IAI8S sa)agelp aled Alewld ay |
yoeqpea) Juaied aAlIsod pey sey 92IA18s SINOH JO 1IN0 d9 8yl
sinoy papuaixa 03 dn paubis saonoeud 49 JO %€Q

dO J1ay) wod) aAI@081 A8y a1e2d 8y} UlIm paljsiies ale sjuaplisal JO 9,GQ

pjeljug :aJes Buinoiduwiy




Page 24

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm
9l

MMNE sawwelbolid

Bulusalos pue SySIl J8oURd [9MO( JO SSaualeme uo 94 JndsjoH weyuano |
pue YN Jaouen |pmog yum Bupiom diysssuped padojaasp 010z Ul —

Bulusalos [edIAI8D uo 8belanod Jo |[aAs| YBIH —
:sowwelboid Buiusalos ul sjuswanoidw| .
| LOZ JOQWIBAON — Saue] usals) g0g 1e adIAles ABojooaeuls) —

1 10 1940100
— uojuowpg pue [|IH 8J0WYDUIAA Ul SISUSP OM] Ul 82IAI8S Aisbins el —

L L0Z 18q01o0 — A1abing peoy juojey) ie adlaies Abojowjeyiydpo —
:AllUNWIWIOD BY] Ul SBJIAIBS MBU 334Ul ‘L LOZ U]
SQ|-1apun JojJ 92IAI8S yoealdnQ YijesaH |enxag e sl alay|

oIuIjO |e2160j0o8RBUAL) B pue
OIUID BUIDIPSIN Aleuln-0)IUSD) Ul Y|em e SIBYO S |oeydIN 1S 1B B|IA BYL -

asInp Jsljeloadg aseasi(] s,uosuplied e sl alay| e

pjeljug :aJes Buinoiduwiy




Page 25

uopuoT |esjua) YLoN YN*syu pu"mmm
Ll
sislijawoldo |eoo| Aq uni Aemuyied |ellajal 19841p — SUOIPUOD BA8 JOUIlN

|lesnuan AesuloH pue
aue diyspJo 1e o|gejieAe ale SadIAIas bulsinu ainjie) yeay Alunwwo))

sisioewleyd Ajlunwiwiod Jo Ylomiau e Ag suop uonejnbeoo-nuy .
SOOIAISS
9)0J]S JO MBIABJ UOISSILIWOD Ajllenp aled Juadal e ul uopuo] ul do) pue
Alleuoneu ,G payues aJam ey} SaoIAIBas BuliaAl|dp swes) aleod |e1o0s pue
Arewid ‘Alepuooss Jo swea) pajelbajul Aq papiroid uoneljigeysal a)oS .
Juswa|ge-aJ pue Aiojelidsas Ajlunwiwod
Buipnjoul ‘swea| alen pajelbaju| paseg-Ajjeloads Jo JuswdojoAs(q .

PUS JUOl} 4O — [eNdSOH XaS9|PPIAl YLON UM UOIjeI0ge||09
9S0J0 Ul 8)jua) aJe) Juabin pue JUsWSSassSy ay) Jo Juswysi|gelsgy

AabulieH :a1ed buinoaduwi




Page 26

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

8l
SHN
diyssauped asinu Ajiwey ‘Alayimpiw ‘Abojoosaeulb ‘solaisqo Buipiaold yjesy
S,UBWOM UO Sn20j e sey ( Juswysiginjal) anjuad) YijeaH peoy YinowauA| -—

sooIAlas Awojogayd
sopinold (Juawdojenapal) peoy s.uuy 1S ‘enuan Bulalg AyjjeeH sjedne1 eyl —
ABojooseuAb pue ABojoin apnjoul palayo Sa2IAISS JaYID -

Apoaul
13Ja1 UBd S495 YoIlym 0] ‘punosel)jn op os|e sisibojoipel yjjesH cogmc__ﬂz_c\.,m .
ABojojewuap juejNSUOD pue Sq5) usamlag Salul|o
ABojojewuap Apoam yiim awoy 0] J8SO|0 Sa2IAISS SOpIACId UOIBUIYAA o
:(pIng mau) anuan yjeasH pooylnoqybiaN [enuan AesuioHq —
yjjeay |enxas
pue suonIpuod wJia) Buoj Jo} soluld Ajlunwwod :(pjing mau) sue diyspio] —

:oWoy 0] J8S0|0 aJed
Jo abuel e apinoiad sanuad aleoyjeay Allunwwod pue Alewisd abie| InoH .

AabulieH :a1ed buinoaduwi




Page 27

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

yyeay |eyusw ‘diysioAlAINS Jooued ‘ewylse ‘gqHO ‘adod
‘sgjaqelp Buipnjoul suonipuod wia) Buo| yum ajdoad Joj yoddns sepeg —

S92IAI8s dn paulol alow apinoid 0] a1ed |eloosS YIM Buiyiom 1aso|) —
Alunwwod ayj 03 bupes |eydsoy ayj wolj paaow aie) —
:swes) Joddns Ajlunwwo9 pasueyua pue Jaylabo) buiom sadnoeld

S9OIAJISS JO abuel JapeoIq B pue SS90k JO SIN0Y Paseaou| .

1351eq
Ajuaisisuod aq ||Im aled Allunwwod pue Alewud Jo aousaliadxs Juaied

a1ninj ayj} ui ated Alewlad




Page 28

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

0c
SHN
210z Aenuep
JO pua ay] ie spJeog JuIior ayl 0] uaye) aq ||Im Abajens alen Alewud

SsauaAlsuodsal pue ssadoe ‘sasiwald —
uolnelbajul pue SHIOMIBN —
uoljewJdojul pue || —
Aljenb pue saoinies [eoluly —
:seale Jolew In0H

suolje|ndod |e20| uo sisAjeue eiep yjjesy
ollgnd 1sngoJ Jo 8sn ay) uo paseq a( ||IM suonuajul BuluoIsSSIWWO)

JUSWI}SOAUI Jualdindal-uoUu pue JuaJlindal apn|oul Sue|d -

a1ninj ayj} ui ated Alewlad




Page 29

uopuo1 [es3ua) YuoN

SHN

YN'SYU' [OU MMM

suoljsand




Page 30

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON

SHN

)N"SYU jou MMM

1SNJ| SHN S|eldsoH wueq asey) pue jauleg
9AIIN29XT JaIYD
uojseq yien

}sni] SHN s|eydsoH
wLie4 asey ) pue jauieg




Page 31

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm
€C

Alanodal paoueyuy .

NaH 8 NLl - Hun juswssassy Apep|g —
sjuanedinQ . Jlun Juswissessy oljelpsed —
soujelpeed a.ua) aleQ jusbin .
(1un uolnelljilgeysy -«
Pal-alMPI|\ “oul) Ajluisley . Aiabins Aeq .
Aiebins Aeq . S92IAIBS
Aiabins Aousbilowg laoueQ/Aiabins aAldd|g .
Aouabiawg pue JuspIody e sjuanedinQ .
soljeipaed
9 Ajuiajey ‘a1en Aouabiswg ale) pauue|d
jouleg w.ie4 aseysn

saseydwa Aiejuswajdwios yym g
S9)IS OM) sajeald Abajeas |eosiuld HIg .’




Page 32

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

eaJe Alanodal 1ybiulano 0) N1 | WeAuo) —

BUIpA SpuelybBiH ulylim Jun Juswssassy Allep|g ajeal) —
sjuanedino 1o} Buip|ing Alulsiew Jo juswysiqiniey —
spJem spue|ybiH 0juo spaq ajepljosuo) —

alJluan alen Juabin 0] UOISIBAUOD RV bunsixg —

‘|leldsoH wlieH aseyn .

Abajealg
|esiul|d H3g Joddns 03} syiom jejide)




Page 33

UOpUOT [EUSD YLON . ANSYU- UMMM
SHN
Saljl|loe) [BeleuOau pue Ajluisjew pajjopowal pue MaN —
sjualjedino s,uswom Jo Buljjepoway —
seale jualjed-1no pue -ul oueipaed 03 sebueyn —
Jauueods | —
uoljEpOWWOo2e WOOoJ 8|buls ul 8sealou| —
Auoeded NAH/NL| Jo uoisuedxy —

SEDT)=]
oljeipaed pue uone)osnsal JUsIoINS apNnjoul 0) QY O) SHIOA —

ooeds piem a]eald 0] auldIpaj\ Aleulin 0JUSS) JO UOIBIOIDY —
‘|lejidsoH jauleg .

Abajealg
|esiul|d H3g Joddns 03} syiom jejide)




Page 34

uopuo1 [es3ua) YuoN

SHN

YN'SYU' [OU MMM

suoljsand




Page 35

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON

SHN

)N"SYU jou MMM

}sniL SHN [endsoH ANsiaAlun xasa|ppIAl YUON
9AIIN29XT JaIYD
Jayiuued ale|n

}sni] SHN |e}idsoH
Ajisianlun xasa|ppiN Y3ON




Page 36

uopuoT jes3ua) YHoN MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

Hun aJen Aloje|nquiy ‘eqjusn
alen 1uabin ‘62 shemuyjed AlaAljop aled Jualdlyd pue UISPOIN

oyous ‘b8
spaau uolle|jndod 0] palojie) ‘papiroid SadIAIBs isijeloads Jo abuey .

Jeah Jad anuan aie) jJuabin ay) pue 39V O} SHSIA 000°0¥ L AMeSN

AabuleH pue pjaijug usamiag |enba Ajybnou jiids sjusned .

MOIAIBDAQ 3




Page 37

uopuoT jes3ua) YHoN MN'SyupuMMmm
62

SHN uoIEpPOWIWOdJ. XBs 8|buls %00

Aljunod
ay] Ul pJodal 1S8q :UOoISSIWpPE JO SIN0oY {Z Ulylm Buluueds a)ons .

Inoge| Ul 8180 8U0-0}-8U0 BUIAIBDSS SIBYIOW JO %Z6 o

uonnu pue Allubip ‘Aseald 1oy spiepuels Alljenb
yum jueldwod Ajjnj — uonoadsul uoISSILWOoD Ajljenpd alen) Jusddy .

siauled 10N ‘6 syiomiau jeoiulo ul seheid Aay] .

slaquinu Jje)s [eoIpal pasealou|

sawoo)nQ




Page 38

uopuof jesjua) YjionN 0 AN sSyu | DU*MMMm

JuswdojaAap uoljjiw €213 Jo buluado ayy Agq payie

aleoyjjeay jo sJaealk paspuny auQ .




Page 39

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

1€
aoualladxs
pue A)ajes juaijed aoueyus 0] a1IS U0 payullslul sanljioe] ||V o

salljioe) Aiabins Aep pue jusnedin .

saulyoew punosedj|n inoj pue liun Aydeisbowwew
‘SIBUUBDS | D OM] ‘Jauueds YN Wz’ L3 e bulpnjoul anuad onsoubelq .

spJem juanedul ye-ay}-jo-a}els oAl{ e
saseay) bunesado mau ybig .

QY S.UaIp|lyd pue ynpe /iy jobiel yonpy .

sjoe} Jusawdo|aAap |elidsoH




Page 40

UoOpuUOT |es3ud) YON MN'SyupuMMmm

SHN

pJem juaiedul [euolnippe pue sjualedino
S . uswom ‘saljeay] bunesado om] ‘yun Ageq aled |eroads Jabue|
‘S|oA9] ||e 1B a1ed Ajlulslew paj-lue)insuod apiaoid o) Bulpjing mau y .

JIUN JUBWISSBSSY Jljeipaed
sSpaq S,uUaJp|iyo pue S,UsWOM BIIXT

spaqg juanedul }npe enxg .

abe)s oSe) ssaulsng auljinQ Iy

oJedyjjesy
jejyidsoy 03 sjusawaAoiduwi Jaypn4




Page 41

uopuo1 [es3ua) YuoN

SHN

YN'SYU' [OU MMM

suoljsand




Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43 Agenda Item 5

Special Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC)
for North Central London Sector

14 November 2011

Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy
1. Report
1.1 The following background information to this issue is attached:

o Letter from the Secretary of State for Health to the Chair of Enfield Health
Scrutiny Panel outlining the outcome of their referral of the issue;

e The Independent Reconfiguration Panel’s (IRP) advice to the Secretary of
State

e A letter from the Chair of NHS North Central London to the Chair of the
JHOSC outlining the current position and next steps.

1.2  Officers from NHS North Central will present on the implementation process
and associated issues. The JHOSC have requested that the following issues
be addressed as part of this:

e At what stage is the implementation process?
e Have the four tests for service change been met?

e How has the transition process been affected by reductions in
management capacity and the current financial challenges and what
measures have been taken to mitigate these?

e Does the commitment from the PCTs to move services only when there is
an established capacity and all facilities are in place at the designated
hospitals still stand?

e What progress has been made in addressing the transport issues?

e What safeguards are in place to ensure that there is sufficient capacity to
cope with demand for:
o Maternity services so that hospitals are not forced to turn women away:
and
o A&E services

e What progress has been made in implementing the planned developments
in primary and community care necessary to support the changes in the



Page 44

strategy and, in particular, the provision of additional health centres and
urgent care facilities?

How will all local NHS trusts remain financially sustainable and, in
particular, able to fulfil the demands of being foundation trusts and meeting
PFl payments?

How will commissioners seek to engage with patients and the public in
order to ensure that their views are considered and to build confidence in
the new arrangements?



Page 45

From the Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP
Secretary of State for Health

Department
of Health

POC1_625192

Richmond House

Councillor Alev Cazimoglu 79 Whitehall

Lond.
Chair, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel SWIZHZ;J;
Enfield Council
: i Tel: 020 7210 3000
SCI'lltll‘ly Services Mb-sofs@dh.gsi.gov.uk
PO Box 50
B Block

Civic Centre
Silver Street

Enfield EN1 3XA
12 SEP 201

e pos CW,JW Gbalm«g@\

BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY
ALTERNATIVE PROPOSALS REPORT AND REFERRAL FROM
ENFIELD COUNCIL AND INITIAL INDEPENDENT
RECONFIGURATION PANEL ASSESSMENT

Further to your Scrutiny Panel’s referral letter of 20 February 2011 and
your Council’s report and supporting documents of 14 April 2011
concerning the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy, I asked
the Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) for its advice on this matter.

The Panel has now completed its initial assessment and shared its advice
with me.

A copy of the Panel’s initial assessment is appended to this letter.

The Panel will publish its advice on [ September 2011 at
www.irpanel.org.uk

In order to make a decision on this matter, I have considered the concerns
raised by your Scrutiny Panel, the contents of your Council’s report to me
and have taken into account the IRP’s advice.



Page 46

Grounds for referral by Enfield Council’s Health Scrutiny Panel
Essentially, your referral to me was made on the grounds that:

e the four key tests designed to build confidence within the service,
with patients and communities have not been met; and

e the variation to the provision of local services is not in the best
interests of the residents of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.

I will now take each of the points you have raised in turn and set down
undercover of this letter my response to your Council’s report to me of 14
April 2011 in the context of the Panel’s advice to me.

The four tests for service change
I know we all share a commitment to improving health and healthcare.

Where this requires change in the configuration of services, I believe the
local NHS in conjunction with its partners needs to lead these processes
to build confidence within the service and with the patients and
communities we all serve.

As an integral part of its assessment, the Panel considered the
documentation provided by NHS London regarding its application of the
four tests to the BEH clinical strategy.

This consideration was taken in the context of the relevant guidance to
the NHS and that the four tests are being applied retrospectively in this
case.

In the Panel’s opinion, the process appears to have been robust and the
consideration of the evidence compiled thorough and well balanced.

The Panel acknowledges that sections of the clinical and wider
community in Enfield are unhappy with aspects of the proposals that will
see some services consolidated away from Chase Farm.

The Panel goes on further to say that was always the case and remains so.
Nevertheless, the Clinical Strategy is designed to best meet the needs of
the wider population across the whole of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.



Page 47

H ? Department
Q. 7 of Health

Representations seen by the IRP from Haringey GP commissioners and
councillors in Barnet and in Haringey have stressed this point.

Proposals not in the best interests of the local NHS

As part of its initial assessment, the Panel also looked closely at the
impact of the proposed changes under the BEH clinical strategy, and how
these might affect local patients.

The Panel is clear that the case for change is the right one. No viable
alternative clinical proposals have been put forward since NHS London
undertook its own assurances against the four tests for service change,
taking into account current and prospective patient choice (a key
component of those four tests).

[ understand the local NHS believes the drivers for change under the BEH
clinical strategy are centred on getting the best outcomes for patients
across both primary and secondary care with the development of primary
care services already having been introduced in each of the boroughs of
Barnet, Enficld and Haringey.

Future of Enfield hospital (report from Enfield Council)

At our meeting on 10 March 2010, I offered the Local Authority, GP
commissioners and the local NHS the opportunity to work up alternative
proposals against the current BEH clinical strategy.

Your report to me of 14 April 2011 sets down ten recommendations,
which are not as I am sure you will agree alternative clinical options for
service change.

Your report says, “at this time, the Council states Enfield GP Consortium
is unable to offer any guide to what is their preferred option.

Instead, the Council believes Enfield GPs will simply support any
decision I as Secretary of State for Health might take and do not want to
support any particular options in advance of that decision”.

Further, your report goes on to say, “we [Enfield Council] believe there is
no single alternative option to the BEH clinical strategy that will deliver



Page 48

viability, but that I as Secretary of State for Health, following the
Council’s ten recommendations, can achieve clinical safety, meet local
taxpayers’ demands and secure long term viability.

In its advice to me, the Panel states that the report submitted by your
Council understandably highlights local concerns and calls for a retention
of the status quo with a similar level of clinical services at North
Middlesex and Chase Farm as at present.

However, it does not, in the Panel’s view, provide any credible alternative
to the current proposals or address the increasing and real concerns about
the safety and sustainability of current services that underpin the clinical
case for change.

I am sure you will agree with me that the safety of patients is paramount.

This is one of the reasons why I believe that in supporting the Panel’s
advice, the case for change should proceed.

I believe that any further delay to implementing change may be
detrimental to patients and the services they access.

Initial IRP advice

Essentially, the Panel believes your Scrutiny Panel’s referral is not
suitable for full review.

I support the Panel’s advice to me in full.

I am satisfied the IRP’s advice on this important issue is in the interests of
the local health service and I do hope your Committee will continue to
work with local NHS partners in the best interest of patients.

Next steps

Having covered off issues concerning the IRP, I will now turn to the
important themes of organisational change and the future commissioning
of acute hospital services for the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey

geography.




Page 49

Department
of Health

Organisational change

In accepting the Panel's advice, I am today writing separately to NHS
London to issue a direction using the powers in section 8 of the NHS Act
2006.

I am directing NHS London to work with Barnet and Chase Farm
Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex University Hospital NHS
Trust to assess the feasibility of transferring Chase Farm Hospital to the
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust with a view to ensuring
this happens if the assessment of the merits of doing so supports this.

I have asked NHS London to report back to me with the findings of its
feasibility study no later than 16 December 2011.

Future commissioning arrangements

I have discussed issues of organisational change and future
commissioning arrangements with NHS London.

It is clear to me the most effective way to deliver services will change
over time.

For example, as new models of service delivery for urgent and emergency
care networks are brought forward, clinical techniques and new
approaches to clinical staffing and IT are developed and the needs of the
local population change.

I believe it is right that if in future, local Clinical Commissioning Groups
assess that a need for services at Chase Farm is unmet, then it will be
within their gift to commission new services on that basis.

As part of any new local management structure following future
organisational change, I would in any case expect that organisation to
review its future clinical service provision to ensure it meets the needs of
its local population.

I am copying this letter to:

Dame Ruth Carnall, Chief Executive, NHS London




Page 50

Dr Peter Barrett, Chair, Independent Reconfiguration Panel

Councillor Doug Taylor, Leader, Enfield Council

Baroness Wall, Chair, Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust
Mark Easton, Chief Executive, Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS
Trust

David Hooper, Chair, North Middlesex Hospitals NHS Trust

Clare Panniker, Chief Executive, North Middlesex Hospitals NHS Trust
Councillor Gideon Bull, Chair, North Central London Joint Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Dilek Dogus, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Setvices,
Haringey Council

Councillor Helena Hart, Public Health, Barnet Council

John Lynch, Chair, Enfield LINk

Paula Khan, Cluster Chair, NHS North Central London

Caroline Taylor, Cluster Chief Executive, NHS North Central London

i

ANDREW LANSLEY CBE




Page 51

IRP

6" Floor
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
London
SW1w 9SP
The Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP
Secretary of State for Health
Richmond House
79 Whitehall
London SW1A 2NS
8 July 2011

Dear Secretary of State

REFERRAL TO SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH
Enfield Council Health Scrutiny Panel
Barnet Enfield Haringey Clinical Strategy

Thank you for forwarding copies of the referral letter and supporting documentation from
Cllrs Mike Rye and Christine Hamilton, Chair and Vice Chairman, Enfield Health Scrutiny
Panel (HSP). NHS London provided initial assessment information. Letters were also
received from Nick de Bois MP and David Burrowes MP and from Mr Kierran McGregor,
Secretary, Save Chase Farm. A list of all the documents received is at Appendix One.

The IRP has undertaken an initial assessment, in accordance with our agreed protocol for
handling contested proposals for the reconfiguration of NHS services. The IRP considers
each referral on its merits and its advice in this case is set out below. The Panel concludes
that this referral is not suitable for full review.

Background

Between June and October 2007, Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs undertook public
consultation on proposals for changes to local healthcare services, in particular the
distribution of services between Barnet, Chase Farm and North Middlesex Hospitals. The
proposals related to a wide range of existing hospital-based services including accident and
emergency services, inpatient and day surgery, maternity and paediatric services. The
proposals would also allow for the strengthening of local primary and community services,
including the creation of new primary care centres for diagnostic and outpatient services.

The public consultation document, Your health, Your future, Safer Closer Better, set out two
options for a future model of services:

° Planned Care is concentrated on the Chase Farm site
o Chase Farm becomes a community hospital

The Joint Scrutiny Committee of the London Boroughs of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey and
the Hertfordshire County Council responded to the consultation in October 2007 expressing

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 52

IRP

major concerns about the deliverability of the proposed changes and stating that it was
unable to support either option.

The Barnet Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Project Board responded to the Joint
Scrutiny Committee’s concerns in November 2007. In the same month, the Project Board
advised the Boards of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs that Option 1 was its
recommended option. The three PCT Boards met on 11 December 2007 and accepted the
recommendation.

At its meeting in January 2008, the Joint Scrutiny Committee considered the PCTs’ decision
and referred the matter to the Secretary of State for Health on 31 March 2008. Following an
initial assessment, the IRP undertook a full review of the proposals - known as the Barnet
Enfield Haringey (BEH) Clinical Strategy - and submitted its report to the Secretary of State
on 31 July 2008. The Panel concluded that change was essential to ensure high quality
health services for local people. It supported the proposals but made sixteen
recommendations, that must be adhered to, to ensure safe, sustainable and accessible
services. The Panel supported proposals for the centralisation of A&E services and
consultant-led maternity care at Barnet and North Middlesex Hospitals, an urgent care unit
and planned care based at Chase Farm Hospital and endorsed the intention to improve
primary care services throughout the locality. The Secretary of State for Health accepted the
IRP’s advice in full on 4 September 2008.

Since the Secretary of State’s decision in 2008, work has continued to implement the BEH
Clinical Strategy. Developments to primary care services have been introduced in each of
the boroughs of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. Urgent Care Centres have opened at Chase
Farm and North Middlesex Hospitals and walk-in centres in Finchley and Edmonton
(though the latter is due to reduce its opening hours from 1 October 2011). Some clinical
services have been consolidated within Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust and
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust.

Implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy was halted in the summer of 2010 when a
moratorium on all significant service changes was introduced pending review against four
tests for service change identified by the Secretary of State. The Revision to the Operating
Framework for the NHS in England 2010-11 and a letter to the NHS dated 29 July 2010
from the NHS Chief Executive on service reconfiguration provided guidance on how this
should be approached.

A Strategic Co-ordination Group (SCG) — comprising representatives from relevant local
authorities, LINks, local GPs, acute trust clinicians and PCTs - was formed to assess the
BEH Clinical Strategy against the four tests and to report to a London-wide review panel
(that included external input and membership) established by NHS London. The SCG
commissioned UCL Partners to provide an independent analysis of whether the four tests
had been met. It also convened a Clinical Review Panel to review the clinical evidence for
the service changes envisaged in the BEH Clinical Strategy and to ascertain whether any
change in circumstance or evidence had taken place in the three years since the original
consultation.

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 53

IRP

The SCG met on 30 November 2010 to consider the evidence provided by UCL Partners and
others. It agreed with the Clinical Review Panel’s conclusion that the case for change had
increased since 2007. The SCG submitted its report to NHS London on 6 December 2010
concluding “that the balance of evidence and stakeholder views is in favour of the Strategy.
We have reached a consensus and would wish to recommend to you [NHS London] that,
from the evidence provided to us, the four tests laid down by the Secretary of State...have
been met.”

The NHS London review panel affirmed that the materials submitted by the SCG reflected a
true assessment and that on balance the tests had been met. On 26 January 2011, a Board
meeting of NHS London confirmed that the BEH Clinical Strategy had met the four tests
and noted the implication of its decision that implementation of the Strategy would re-
commence.

Prior to this, Enfield HSP met on 24 November 2010 to consider its own view of the
application of the four tests and on 26 November 2010 wrote to the Chair of the BEH Co-
ordination Group to advise that in the HSP’s view the tests had not been met. HSP members
met representatives of UCL Partners on 19 January 2011 to discuss its findings and
requested further information, which was provided on 28 January 2011. At a meeting on 1
February 2011, Enfield HSP resolved to refer the BEH Clinical Strategy to the Secretary of
State.

On 10 March 2011, the Secretary of State met a cross-party delegation of local MPs and
Enfield councillors to discuss the BEH Clinical Strategy. At the meeting, the Secretary of
State invited local stakeholders to submit to him alternative options to the Strategy. Enfield
Council submitted a report, Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for
Health, on 14 April 2011.

The Secretary of State sought initial assessment advice from the IRP on 11 May 2011
requesting that the Panel’s advice should incorporate the IRP’s views about NHS London’s
application of the four tests in this case and the contents of the report submitted by Enfield
Council. The Secretary of State also requested that, in considering options for service
change, the Panel’s advice should not be restricted by current organisational boundaries.

Basis for referral
The HSP’s letter of referral of 20 February 2011 states that:

“On Tuesday 1 February 2011 Enfield Health Scrutiny Panel agreed to exercise its power
of referral to the Secretary of State for Health pursuant to Section 7 of the Health and Social
Care Act 2001.

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 54

IRP

The Health Scrutiny Panel noted the decision of NHS London at their Board meeting on 26
January 2011 to recommend that the Barnet Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy had met
the four new tests for reconfiguration based on the BEH Strategic Co-ordination Group’s
assessment and that the BEH strategy should recommence.

The Health Scrutiny Panel considers that the four key tests designed to build confidence
within the service, with patients and communities have not been met and is referring the
matter as the proposed variation to the provision of services is not in the best interests of the
residents of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.”

IRP view

The Panel notes:

e Guidance on the application of the four tests for service reconfiguration was issued to
the NHS on 29 July 2010 (letter from Chief Executive of the NHS in England, Gateway
ref 14543)

e Following the issue of that guidance, NHS London, together with the local NHS, has
put in place a robust process for the assessment of relevant reconfiguration schemes and
conducted a thorough retrospective assessment of the BEH Clinical Strategy against the
four tests that incorporated external input

e Enfield HSP, at its meeting on 24 November 2010, concluded that the four tests had not
been met — this conclusion was reached without reference to the detailed analysis
conducted by UCL Partners which was not available until 1 December 2010 (after the
deadline by which stakeholders had been asked to respond)

e Further to a meeting with UCL Partners, on 19 January 2011, Enfield HSP remained
unconvinced that the tests had been met

e Since the Secretary of State’s invitation to local stakeholders to submit alternative
strategies (at the meeting of 10 March 2011), no new evidence has been presented that
constitutes a substantive alternative to the BEH Clinical Strategy

e The Clinical Review Panel, in offering its advice to NHS London, concluded that “the
clinical case for change has in fact increased over the past few years”

e A Strategic Options Appraisal prepared by Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust
(dated 14 January 2011) set out a contingency plan should the BEH Clinical Strategy
not be approved for continued implementation — the options considered by the Trust in
the paper are not in preference to the original strategy, nor has their impact been
assessed against the needs of the overall population in Barnet, Enfield and Haringey

e Representations made to the IRP by Enfield MPs have suggested that changes to the
existing organisational structures of local hospital trusts could facilitate better options
for services serving Enfield residents

e Because of the locations of the hospitals, the services they provide and the populations
they serve, collaboration across PCT and local authority boundaries is essential to
deliver any major change

e Enfield HSP, in its letter of referral of 20 February 2011, states “It is our view that
primary care must be in place and seen to be working before withdrawal or changes
occur at the [Chase Farm] hospital”

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 55

IRP

Conclusion
The IRP offers its advice on a case-by-case basis taking account of the specific
circumstances and issues of each referral.

In requesting initial assessment advice from the IRP, you asked that the Panel incorporate
views about NHS London’s application of the four tests in this case and the contents of the
report submitted by Enfield Council. You also requested that, in considering options for
service change, the Panel’s advice should not be restricted by current organisational
boundaries.

The Panel has considered the documentation provided by NHS London regarding its
application of the four tests to the BEH Clinical Strategy. This consideration is in the
context of the relevant guidance to the NHS and that the four tests are being applied
retrospectively in this case. In the Panel’s opinion, the process appears to have been robust
and the consideration of the evidence compiled thorough and well-balanced. It is true that
sections of the clinical and wider community in Enfield are unhappy with aspects of the
proposals that will see some services consolidated away from Chase Farm Hospital. That
was always the case and remains so. Nevertheless, the Clinical Strategy is designed to best
meet the needs of the wider population across the whole of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.
Representations seen by the IRP - from Haringey GP commissioners and councillors in
Barnet and in Haringey - have stressed this point.

Serious concerns have also been raised about the implications of not completing the
implementation of the strategy for services at the North Middlesex Hospital following its
refurbishment under a PFI scheme. Indeed, Enfield Council itself agreed a motion in
November 2010 that no decisions should undermine the quality and viability of the North
Middlesex Hospital. The adverse service and financial consequences of a change in direction
at this stage are a legitimate concern that would be felt by residents of Enfield and Haringey.
The report submitted by Enfield Council understandably highlights local concerns and calls
for a retention of the status-quo with a similar level of clinical services at North Middlesex
and Chase Farm Hospitals as at present. However, it does not, in the IRP’s view, provide
any credible alternative to the current proposals or address the increasing and real concerns
about the safety and sustainability of current services that underpin the clinical case for
change.

The status quo has real downside risk in terms of the current safety and sustainability of
local services. The ongoing safety and quality of these services must be the highest priority
for all concerned. The implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy requires close co-
ordination of effort across two providers. Representations made to the IRP have suggested
that the needs of Enfield residents might be better served by the separation of the Barnet and
Chase Farm NHS Trust allowing for the creation of a new foundation trust comprising North
Middlesex and Chase Farm hospitals. The IRP was not presented with evidence to assess the
possible benefits of this organisational change on service configuration. It is for local
commissioners and providers of the services to explore this matter further, under the
guidance of NHS London, to establish how it might help deliver the safe and sustainable
services that local residents need. For reasons of clinical risk management, effective

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 56

IRP

engagement of all relevant parties and financial viability, these issues should only be
explored within the existing framework for implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy.

The IRP does not consider that a full review would add any value in this instance. There are
no new substantive proposals or decisions to be reviewed. Concerns raised by Enfield HSP,
such as its wish to see appropriate primary care services in place and working before
changes are made to services at Chase Farm Hospital, were covered in the IRP’s
recommendations in 2008 along with other actions that were required. They remain as
relevant now as then.

Yours sincerely

S

f F s -,
Atpr ot

Dr Peter Barrett CBE DL
Chair, IRP

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6
E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 57

IRP

APPENDIX ONE

LIST OF DOCUMENTS

Enfield Council Health Scrutiny Panel

1 Letter of referral and attachments from Cllr Mike Rye, Enfield HSP Chair, to
Secretary of State for Health, 20 February 2011
Attachments:

2 Letter to Chair of Co-ordination Group, NHS Enfield, from Enfield HSP Chair, 26
November 2011

3 Extract from UCL Partners Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Report
assessing the level of support for the Strategy amongst General Practitioners

4 Letter to HSP Chair from BEH Clinical Strategy Senior Responsible Officer, 1
December 2010

5 Letter to Chief Executive, NHS London, from BEH Clinical Strategy Senior
Responsible Officer, 6 December 2010

6 Letter to Chair and Vice Chairman, Enfield HSP, Chief executive, NHS London, 13
December 2010

7 Response to questions from Enfield HSP following presentation by Dr Helen Barratt,
UCL partners and Prof Hilary Pickes, member of Clinical Review Team, 28 January
2011

8 Enfield LINk response to Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Clinical
Review Panel Report, November 2010

9 Letters to IRP Chair from Cllr Alev Cazimoglu, Chair, Enfield Health and Wellbeing
Scrutiny Panel, 19 May and 16 June 2011

10 Letter to IRP Chair from Cllr Doug Taylor, Leader of the Council, Enfield Council, 6
July 2011

NHS London

1 NHS London Board paper NHS London’s assurance review of Barnet, Enfield and
Haringey Clinical Strategy against the four new tests for reconfiguration

2 Strategic Co-ordination Group submissions

3 BEH Strategic Co-ordination Group meeting papers, 30 November 2010

4 NHS London Board paper Quality Assurance Framework for reconfiguration
Schemes, 19 October 2010

5 Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for Health submitted on
14 April 2011

6 Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for Health submitted on
14 April 2011 — Record of Submissions

7 BEH Clinical Strategy Update for IRP, 24 February 2011

8 NHS Comments on Enfield Council’s report to the Secretary of State for Health on

the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy, 23 June 2011

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 58

IRP

Other information received

1

2

(O8]

AN D

Letter to Joint Director of Commissioning, NHS Enfield and London Borough of
Enfield, from Haringey GP Commissioning Consortium, 13 April 2011

Letter to Secretary of State for Health from Chair, Haringey Council shadow Health
and Wellbeing Board, undated

Letter to IRP Chair from Nick de Bois MP and David Burrowes MP, 14 June 2011
Letter to IRP Chair from Mr Kierran McGregor, Secretary, Save Chase Farm, 10
June 2011

Letter to IRP from Mr John Sturman, 9 June 2011

Emails and attachments from Mr Donald Smith, 27 June and 7 July 2011

Letter to Secretary of State for Health from Cabinet Member for Public Health,
London Borough of Barnet, 22 June 2011

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 59

NHS

From.the office of: Paula Kahn, Chair North Central London
E-mail: paula.kahn@nclondon.nhs.uk Steph H
Tel: 020 7685 6171 tephenson House

75 Hampstead Road

Fax: 020 7685 6210/6220

PA: Linda Carty Euston
Tel: 020 7685 6163 London NW1 2PL
E-mail: linda.carty@nclondon.nhs.uk

Web: www.ncl.nhs.uk Tel: 020 7685 6300

Fax: 020 7685 6210

29 September 2011

Councillor Gideon Bull
Chair, Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Via email

Dear Councillor Bull
Re: Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy

As you are aware, the Secretary of State for Health has supported in full the advice given
to him by the Independent Reconfiguration Panel and has said that the case for change

should proceed.

The Chief Executives and their teams at Barnet and Chase Farm NHS Trust and North
Middlesex University NHS Trust are therefore working to implement the changes set out in
the Clinical Strategy to deliver safe and sustainable services for patients in the three
Boroughs.

This decision means a new future for Chase Farm Hospital which will continue to treat the
majority of patients currently using it.

Patients needing accident and emergency treatment will be seen at Barnet Hospital and
North Middlesex University Hospital, while Chase Farm Hospital will keep its urgent care
centre. At present, 30 per cent of all patients that attend A&E are treated in the hospital’'s

urgent care centre.

Consultant-led maternity services will be delivered at Barnet and North Middlesex
hospitals, where extra capacity is planned to accommodate mothers and babies.

Elective surgery, outpatients and diagnostics will continue on the Chase Farm site. Those
patients with an appointment or treatment booked at Chase Farm will continue to be seen

there.

More information on the changes to local hospital services will be made available over the
coming months.

Chair: Paula Kahn NHS North Central London is a collaborative working arrangement between
Chief Executive: Caroline Taylor Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and Islington Primary Care Trusts



Page 60

Work is also continuing to refresh our primary care commissioning strategies across the
boroughs to ensure that we deliver an integrated primary care service that meets the
needs of our population effectively.

In addition, the Secretary of State has directed NHS London to work with Barnet and
Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex University NHS Trust to assess the
feasibility of transferring Chase Farm Hospital to the North Middlesex University Hospital
NHS Trust and to report back to him by 16 December 2011. This feasibility study will
consider the impact of such a transfer and will want to make sure that each organisation is
sustainable and able to achieve Foundation Trust status.

As further details emerge we will keep you updated. In the meantime, if you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me or Christina Craig, Programme Director, at

christina.craig@nclondon.nhs.uk.

Yours sincerely

Paula Kahn
Chair

Chair: Paula Kahn NHS North Central London is a collaborative working arrangement between
Chief Executive: Caroline Taylor Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and Islington Primary Care Trusts



	Agenda
	3 Declarations of interest
	4 Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy - Organisational Feasibility Study
	BEH FAQs final (2)
	JHOSC_BEHCS_20111114 v 5

	5 Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy - Implementation
	625192 Cllr Alev Cazimoglu (2)
	IRP_referral advice - beh 08 07 11
	Cllr_Bull_JOSC_20110930


